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"1. Each proprietor of a billiard, pool or bagatelle table not 
kept exclusively for family use, for each table three dollars and 
seventy cents ($3.70) per quarter; and for a bowling alley, five 
dollars ($5.00) per quarter for each alley."(Emphasis supplied.) 

An interpretation of section 84-3201, RC.M. 1947, turns on the 
meaning of "bowling alley". Webster's Third New International 
Dictionary contains the following definition: 

"A hardwood lane at the end of which pins are set up for 
bowling and down which a ball is bowled; the building housing 
a group of such units." 

Although a "bowling alley" according to Webster can refer either 
to each lane or the building housing a group oflanes, a closer reading of 
the statute indicates the meaning intended by the legislature. 
Section 84-3201, RC.M. 1947, contains the following words: " ... and 
for a bowling alley, five dollars ($5.00) per quarter for each alley." By 
repeating the words "for each alley" it is my opinion that the legislature 
intended to levy a license fee against each lane or alley in a building 
housing a group of such lanes or alleys. Such an interpretation is 
consistent with a prior interpretation of section 84-3201, R.C.M. 1947, 
that a license fee must be paid for each billiard table in a business 
establishment - Opinions of the Attorney General, Volume 26, opin­
ion 96. 

Therefore, it is my opinion that the license fee, as prescribed by 
section 84-3201, RC.M. 1947, must be paid for each alley or lane in a 
building hOUSing a group of such alleys or lanes. 

VOLUME NO. 33 

Very truly yours, 

ROBERT L. WOODAHL 
Attorney General 

Opinion No. 14 

CROUP INSURANCE FOR COUNTY OFFICERS AND EMP­
LOYEES - extent to which county may participate in payment of 
premiums. Section 11-1024, R.C.M. 1947. 

HELD: The board of county commissioners does not have the 
discretionary power to pay in excess of the statutorily 
prescribed $7.50 per month toward the premiums of group 
insurance entered into for each county officer and employee 
pursuant to section 11-1024, R.C.M. 1947. 
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John A. Dowdall, State Examiner 
Office of the State Examiner 
Sam W. Mitchell Building 
Helena, Montana 59601 

Dear Mr. Dowdall: 

December 16, 1969 

I am in receipt of your letter of November 14,1969 in which you 
request my opinion on the following question: 

"Does Section 11-1024, RC.M. 1947, grant a Board of 
County Commissioners the discretionary power to budget for 
and pay in excess of $7.50 per month toward the premiums of 
group life insurance contracts entered into by county officers 
and employees subsequent to their majority vote?" 

Section 11-1024, Revised Codes of Montana, 1947, as amended by 
Chapter 220, Laws of 1969, provides as follows: 

"All departments, bureaus, boards, commISSIOns and 
agencies of the state of Montana, and all counties, cities, and 
towns shall upon approval by two-thirds (%) vote of the officers 
and employees of each such department, bureau, board, 
commission, agency, county, city and town, to enter into group 
hospitalization, medical, health, accident and/or group life 
insurance contracts or plans for the benefit of their officers, 
employees, and their dependents, and the respective 
administrative and governing bodies pay as part of the officers 
and employees salary seven dollars and fifty cents ($7.50) per 
month for each officer and employee." 

Section 1, Chapter 220, Laws of Montana, 1969, amended this 
section by making the group insurance program mandatory for state, 
city and town officers and employees who elect to come under said 
program. As section 11-1024, RC.M. 1947, applies to county officers 
and employees, the governing body of the county, the board of county 
commissioners, must " ... pay as part of the officers and employees 
salary seven dollars and fifty cents ($7.50) per month for each officer and 
employee", toward a group insurance program which is approved by 
two-thirds (%) of the officers and employees of said county. There is no 
discretion allowed the commissioners under section 11-1024, RC.M. 
1947, as to the ampunt paid toward the insurance program. It is a 
well-settled rule of administrative law that a public agency or board has 
the power to do only what is expressly granted to it by law. See State v. 
State Board of Equalization, 133 Mont. 8, 319 P.2d 221 (1957). 
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The same general rule has been applied to boards of county 
commissioners by the Supreme Court of Montana. In a very recent case 
decided by the Montana court, Zderick v. Silver Bow County, No. 
11638, decided on October 31, 1969, the court cited and quoted from 
Lewisv. Petroleum County, 92 Mont. 563, 17 P.2d 60 (1932), at page 
565: 

"The principle is well established that the board of county 
commissioners may exercise only such powers as are expressly 
conferred upon it or which are necessarily implied from those 
expressed, and that where there is a reasonable doubt as to the 
existence of a particular power in the board of county 
commissioners, it must be resolved against the board, and the 
power denied." (Citation of authority.) 

It is clear that the legislature has established the amount of the 
county's contribution toward the group insurance program at $7.50 per 
month for each employee and officer. A contribution of the county at a 
higher rate is prohibited as being contrary to section 11-1024, R.C.M. 
1947. In Carbon County v. Draper, 84 Mont. 413, 276 Pac. 667 (1929) 
the Montana Supreme Court considered a similar situation in which 
the Board of County Commissioners authorized and approved claims 
against the county in excess of the rates provided by law. In that case, 
the court said at page 420: 

*** 

"The statute having fixed the mInImUm rate, by fair 
implication prohibits the payment of anything in excess of that 
allowance. Any payments made at a higher rate than those fixed 
by law, to the extent of the excess, were upon claims not 'legally 
chargeable against the county,' and were made 'without 
authority of law'." (Citation of authority.) 

See also City ofR(;)Undup v. Liebetrau, 134 Mont. 114,327 P .2d 810 
(1958). 

Therefore, it is my opinion that the board of county commissioners 
does not have the discretionary power to pay in excess of the statutorily 
prescribed $7.50 per month toward the premiums of group insurance 
contracts for each county officer and employee entered into pursuant to 
section 11-1024, R.C.M. 1947. 

Very truly yours, 

ROBERT L. WOO DAHL 
Attorney General 




